
 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES Prescott City Hall 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING Lower Level Conference Room  
Tuesday, February 6, 2018 201 South Cortez St., Prescott, AZ 
9:00 a.m. (928) 777-1100 

 
 

 

The following Agenda will be considered by the Council Subcommittee for Water Issues at its 
meeting on Tuesday, February 6, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in the Lower Level Conference Room, 
201 South Cortez Street, Prescott, Arizona.  One or more members of the Council may be 
attending this meeting through the use of a technological device. 

 
A. Call to Order 
 

B.  Roll Call 
 

  SUBCOMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
 

  Member Steve Blair 
    Member Jim Lamerson 
  Member Steve Sischka 
 

C. Selection of Subcommittee Chairman 
 
D. Subcommittee Meeting Schedule 
 
E.     Notes from Former Ad Hoc Council Water Issues Committee Meeting of 

December 5, 2017 (for information only) 
 
F. 2018 Alternative Water Portfolio Budget Update 
 
G. Requests for Water Service Agreements 
 1.  Cortez Circle Apartments (WSA17-029) 
 2.  Milton Ausherman (WSA 17-030) 
 
H.  Annexation Request and Water Allocation for APN 106-26-007A  
  
I.  Adjournment  
 
 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 
  
The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Prescott City Hall on        ______               
at              ___.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the Prescott City Council with the City Clerk. 
  
 
   _____________________________________ 
Maureen Scott, City Clerk 



CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES AGENDA MEMO 
February 6, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager (Water Resource Management) 

AGENDA ITEM:   Selection of Subcommittee Chairman 

Approved By: Date: 

Water Resource Manager:         Leslie Graser 
 

Regional Programs Director:    Craig McConnell 
 

 

 

  

Summary 
 

The City Council Subcommittee for Water Issues, replacing the previous Mayor's ad hoc 
Water Issues Committee, was established by Resolution No. 4413-1622 adopted on 
December 19, 2017. 
 
To facilitate the conduct of Subcommittee meetings and business, it is necessary to select a 
Chairman by vote of the three Subcommittee members appointed by Council at their 
meeting of January 9, 2018:  Councilmen Blair, Lamerson, and Sischka. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Recommended Committee Action:  Select the Subcommittee Chairman by majority vote 
of the members. 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES AGENDA MEMO 
February 6, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager (Water Resource Management) 

AGENDA ITEM:   Subcommittee Meeting Schedule 

Approved By: Date: 

Water Resource Manager:         Leslie Graser 
 

Regional Programs Director:    Craig McConnell 
 

 

 

  

Summary 
 

The City Council Subcommittee for Water Issues, replacing the previous Mayor's ad hoc 
Water Issues Committee, was established by Resolution No. 4413-1622 adopted on 
December 19, 2017. 
 
Section 3 of the Resolution specifies that the Subcommittee shall meet at least once a 
month, and follow all Open Meeting Laws. 
 
The following Subcommittee meeting schedule for Calendar Year 2018 is recommended 
pursuant to Section 3 of the Resolution, with the meetings to be held at 9:00 am, the first 
Tuesday of each month, in the Prescott City Hall Lower Level Conference Room, unless 
otherwise determined by the Subcommittee Chairman, and publicly posted: 
 
    Tuesday, March 6, 2018 

    Tuesday, April 3, 2018 

    Tuesday, May 1, 2018 

    Tuesday, June 5, 2018 

    Tuesday, July 3, 2018 

    Tuesday, August 7, 2018 

    Tuesday, September 4, 2018 

    Tuesday, October 2, 2018 

    Tuesday, November 6, 2018 

    Tuesday, December 4, 2018 
 
 
 

 

Recommended Committee Action:  Approve the meeting schedule for Calendar Year 
2018. 
 

 



COUNCIL WATER ISSUES 
COMMITTEE 
REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2017 
PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL WATER ISSUES 
COMMITTEE HELD ON DECEMBER 5, 2017, in the LOWER LEVEL CONFERENCE 
ROOM, located at CITY HALL, 201 SOUTH CORTEZ STREET, Prescott, Arizona. 
   
A. Call to Order. 
  

Councilman Lamerson called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m.  
   
B.  Roll Call. 
 
  COUNCIL WATER ISSUES COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
 

Present:       Excused 
Chairman Jim Lamerson   Member Steve Sischka   
Member Steve Blair        
 
Staff Present: 
Clyde Halstead, Assistant City Attorney 
Craig McConnell, Regional Programs Director  
Leslie Graser, Water Resource Manager 

 
C. Approval of minutes of the November 7, 2017, Council Water Issues Committee 

Meeting. 
 

COUNCILMAN BLAIR MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE 
NOVEMBER 7, 2017, WATER ISSUES COMMITTEE MEETING; SECONDED 
BY COUNCILMAN LAMERSON; PASSED (2-0). 

 
D.   Alternative Water Portfolio Update 
  

Leslie Graser reviewed the Calendar Year 2017 (January 1, 2017, through 
December 31, 2017) Alternative Water Budget.  The budget had 70 AF for 
residential and 100 AF for commercial; as of November 7, 2017, the remaining 
balances were 10.6 AF and 100 AF, respectively.  The agenda includes three 
projects to review, all of which would move to Council if the Committee so 
chooses. 
 
All Water Service Agreements would likely fall within the 2018 Water Allocation 
Budget due to scheduling for Council approval after the New Year. 
 
Ms. Graser noted that the water for all projects had already been “reserved” 
within the Portfolio until decisions were rendered by the Committee and Council.  



2 

 

This was an informational item.  No recommendations were made by the 
Committee. 
 

E. Water Service Agreements 
 

Item E.1 Vibrant Building Solutions on Lincoln and Home Streets. There are 
existing structures on the parcels. The proposal by the applicant was to keep the 
existing residence and add an additional five (5) units. Council approval required 
due to being over three units. Project would also require P&Z review. An 
allocation of 0.30 AF/year would be required to complete the project and 0.30 
AF/year of grandfathered groundwater is associated with the property. 
 
Water Issues Committee moved WSA No. 17-026 to Council  
 
Item E.2 357 Pierson, LLC, for Seasmoke Investments. This was Virgil Deorfler’s 
14-Unit apartment project. The Site Plan was scheduled for P&Z in January.  An 
allocation of 1.4 AF/year of alternative water was requested, and 0.70 AF/year of 
grandfathered groundwater applies to the parcel. Total project will need 2.10 
AF/year. 
 
Water Issues Committee moved WSA No.17-027 to Council  
 
Item E.3 WSA17-028 by Architectural Resources Team. The conversion of an 
existing commercial property owned by Catholic Charities Community Services, 
Inc., to a fifty-one (51) unit veterans housing facility. Councilman Blair 
commented that the housing looked like dormitories. Chairman Lamerson stated 
that it was a good project and had a real community benefit. Ms. Graser pointed 
out that it would add additional housing units (51) to the existing 1,500 multi-
family units that currently have water contracts but are not yet built. The 
Committee could make a recommendation today, but Catholic Charities was 
seeking grants.  To do so, they would need a Council letter to set aside and 
confirm water availability. The property would also require rezoning because a 
portion was identified as Downtown Business (DTB), becoming Business 
General (BG).  
 
Water Issues Committee moved WSA No. 17-028 to Council  

 
F. Draft Calendar Year 2018 Water Management Policy 
 

Ms. Graser provided one supporting document for discussion, a table describing 
Policies 9 and 16 in “as written” and “alternative” versions as follows.  
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 

2018 Policy – As Written Alternate Wording 

Policy 9 – Alternative water will not be allocated to 

support lot splits outside the City limits or within 

areas for which water is provided according to Pre-

Existing/ Historical Agreements, unless specifically 

provided otherwise by each such agreement.  

Policy 9 – Alternative water will not be allocated 

to support lot splits occurring in subdivisions with 

a groundwater allowance, or for Pre-

Existing/Historical agreements for which the City 

has satisfied its contractual obligations. 

2018 Policy – As Written Alternate Wording 

Policy 16 – In Calendar Year 2018, applications for 

water service agreements to serve new residential 

development projects, other than those qualifying for 

an allocation from a reservation, or for which the 

City has an obligation to serve pursuant to a Pre-

Existing/Historical Agreement, are encouraged for 

single-family or multi-family projects of 3 units or 

less, subject to the availability of water in the 

Calendar Year 2018 Alternative Water Budget, 

reservation, or other agreement, as applicable.   

Policy 16 – In Calendar Year 2018, applications 

for water service agreements to serve new 

residential projects of more than 3 units shall 

include a statement of community benefit.  

 
 
Ms. Graser noted that a Pre-Existing/Historic agreement would be one of the four 
agreements known as Idylwild, Iron Springs, etc., in which the City agreed in the 
1960s to serve water outside City limits. This became a discussion item last time 
because the 2017 Policy did not allow splits in Groundwater subdivisions. What 
made this complicated was that older subdivisions have been rezoned, not 
maintaining the original platting and use. The new Policy would allow for flexibility 
within these older subdivisions. Councilman Blair pointed out that if he had 
purchased a lot as an investment with the intention to split it, the previous Policy 
would not allow for him to do so. The alternate wording has been provided 
following discussion at the November meeting.  The “as written” Policy would 
encourage infill according to the General Plan. The Committee agreed to move 
forward with “as written." 

 
Policy 16 refers to the Housing Study which confirmed that considerable 
quantities of residential development have already been provided water via 
contracts. Policy 16 as written would encourage infill and smaller development 
projects. The “alternative wording” would require a statement of Community 
Benefit for projects of greater than 3 units.  
 
Craig McConnell pointed out that the Policy does not restrict applications for 
larger projects, but would encourage smaller infill projects. Relative to demand, 
there are years of “watered” projects in contract.  Leslie Graser stated that the 
City has made reservations, including those for historic agreements, this Policy 
would not affect. The “as written” Policy is clear for staff to initiate. Craig 



4 

 

McConnell expects the Policy to be presented at Council one week from today. 
This will allow individual Council members to comment on the wording of Policies 
16 and 9. 
 
Craig McConnell noted that many of the large residentially zoned tracts already 
have reservations. These are where most of the development will occur. Policy 
16 will not affect these large unsubdivided tracts within the City limits. 
 
COUNCILMAN LAMERSON AND COUNCILMAN BLAIR  AGREED BY 
CONSENSUS THAT THE DRAFT POLICY, WITH THE ADDITION OF 
ALTERNATE PROVISIONS FOR POLICIES 9 AND 16, PROCEED TO THE 
COUNCIL STUDY SESSION OF DECEMBER 12, 2017.  
 

G. Other Water Management Updates 
 

Comprehensive Agreement No. 1, the Big Chino Project.  This contract 
contemplates several subsequent implementing contracts.  Council will be seeing 
one of them on December 12, 2017, for the drilling of monitoring wells.   
 
The 2018 Committee schedule.  It is understood that after creation of a new 
standing committee by Council, it will meet on the first Tuesday of each month. 
 
WaterSmart Drop by Drop is the public education program. On December 19, 
2017, a brief presentation will be made to Council. Councilman Blair inquired 
regarding measures that can be tracked for the education program. Leslie Graser 
stated that GPCD has been required by the State. Prescott has always been 
below the required GPCD, but the population changes over time so it is important 
to continue education. The Division also tracks progress through the 
conservation rebate program, and the database system that manages the 
rebates. This program specifically will have a matrix on how effective it is. The 
program is anticipated to run for the next 3-5 years. Councilman Blair asked if 
printed information will be going out in the utility bills. Currently there is no plan to 
put a mailing insert in. Councilman Blair asked if we could do a one-time mailer in 
April or May. This will be addressed by the Division. 
 

H.    ADJOURNMENT  
 

There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Lamerson adjourned the Council 
Water Issues Committee Meeting at 10:39 a.m. 
   
 



CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES AGENDA MEMO  
February 6, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager (Water Resource Management) 

AGENDA ITEM:   Alternative Water Portfolio Update  

Approved By: Date: 

Water Resource Manager:        Leslie Graser  

Regional Programs Director:   Craig McConnell  

 

 

  

Summary 
 
For Calendar Year 2018 (January 1, 2018, through December 31, 2018), alternative 
water for new development was made available ("budgeted") by Council in the categories 
below; the remaining unallocated balances are as indicated:  

           Amount of Budget 
        Budget           Remaining  
 
 1.  Single Family 20 acre-feet           20.0 acre-feet

 

 2.  Multi-Family  10 acre-feet             8.3 acre-feet
1 

1
Vibrant Solutions, LLC, water contract (0.30 AF) was approved by Council on 1/23/2018. At their meeting 

of 12/5/2017, the previous Water Issues Committee recommended that the Doerfler water service 
agreement application (1.40 AF) be considered by Council for approval. 

No single project is eligible for allocation of more than 50% of the applicable preceding 
quantity (residential or commercial), or of the remaining balance during the calendar year. 
 
The opening balance of alternative water available for 2018 was set by the 2018 Water 
Management Policy, approved by Council at their December 12, 2017, Voting Meeting. 
 
Water Service Agreement (WSA) Requests on this Agenda 
 

      Application                                         Total Project        Alternative Water         
 No.      Applicant         Development  Qty Required GW

1
   Reserved

2
   Not Reserved

3

  

         17-029     Cortez Circle, LLC     30 APT               3.60 AF                             3.60 AF          
 
         17-030     Ausherman       1 SFR     0.25 AF                         0.25 AF              

     SFR = single-family residential     MFR = multi-family    APT = apartment units 
  

 1 
GW = eligibility from current & committed groundwater, well abandonment, or extinguished IGFRs 

      2 
Alternative water reservation applies (e.g., residential tract, CVID) 

    
3 
Requires allocation from the remaining balance of the calendar year alternative water budget  

Recommended Subcommittee Action:   For Subcommittee discussion. 



CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES AGENDA MEMO 
February 6, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager (Water Resource Management) 

AGENDA ITEM:   Water Service Agreement Application No. WSA17-029 by Cortez Circle, 
LLC, for a 30-unit apartment project on APNs 109-15-015B and 109-15-015C at 601 South 
Cortez Street 

Approved By: Date: 

Water Resource Manager:        Leslie Graser 
 

Regional Programs Director:   Craig McConnell 
 

 

 

  

Summary 
 
Water Service Agreement Application No.17-029 was submitted on October 30, 2017, by 
Michael Taylor Architects, Inc., on behalf of Cortez Circle, LLC. A thirty-four (34) unit 
apartment complex presently resides on APN 109-15-015C that is served with 
grandfathered groundwater. Alternative water for the additional thirty (30) units was 
previously reserved by City Contract No. 2000-062, as amended by City Contract No. 
2000-062A, which reservation expired on April 11, 2009, when the described thirty (30) 
units were not built. The applicant wishes to secure a new allocation of potable water for 
the Project. 
 
Background 
 
The 2018 Water Allocation Policy states: 
 
 “In Calendar Year 2018, applications for water service agreements to serve new 
residential development project, other than those qualifying for an allocation from a 
reservation, or for which the City has an obligation to serve pursuant to a Pre-
Existing/Historical Agreement, are encouraged for single-family or multi-family projects of 
3 units or less, subject to the availability of water in the Calendar Year 2018 Alternative 
Water Budget, reservation, or other agreement, as applicable.” 
 
Cortez Circle, LLC, will sub-meter each unit, which qualifies for the water-efficient 
allocation of 0.12 acre-foot (AF) per dwelling unit per year.  Hence, the total alternative 
water required is 0.12 x 30 units = 3.6 AF/year 
 
The 2018 Alternative Water Budget included 10 AF for multi-family residential projects. 

 
Attachments 

1) Location Map  
2) Water Service Agreement Application No. WSA17-029 

 
 

Recommended Subcommittee Action:  Forward Water Service Agreement Application 
No.17-029 to Council for consideration of approval. 
 

 



S CORTEZ ST

S 
MO

NT
EZ

UM
A 

ST

S 
CO

RT
EZ

 S
T

ALKER ST

SUMMIT POINT

545 545 545

540

533 533 533

601

536
536

710

601

601

545545545 545545 545

539

535

540

545545545 545545

531

254

609

536

707

606

536

532

601

537

615

719
719

550

238

607

611

535

601

721 727

601

601

601

601

520

200

711 711 711

601

601

538

621

550550550

723

536

530

237

236

533

602

700

534

620

711

707 707 707

705 705 705

601

538

733

545

615

182

550550550 545

538

603

610

522

725

601
601

601 601

601
601

601

601

730

601

9

536

223

218

711

513

601

587

559

560

624

164

601

540

214

723

601

733 733733

511

601
601

601

601
601

720

726

712

601

536

706

606

621

705

APN 109-15-015B

APN 109-15-015C

This map is a product of

This document is a graphic representation only of best available sources.

Legend
CVID properties:

Current Features
Address

abc Streets Annotation 6900
Streets
Lakes
Streams

Golf Course:
FAIRWAY
GREEN
TEE

Parcels
Building

0' 163'1" = 

leah.hubbard, 2018-01-05 09:11:11

The City of Prescott

The City of Prescott assumes no responsibility for any errors.



WSA 1-1 - D^

cityofPRKSCOTT
> I 1 c • *

WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT APPLICATION

Water Resources

201 S. Cortez St., Prescott, AZ 86303

(P) 928.777.1645 (F) 928.777.1255

P/eose complete the form and submit a legible legal description on aseparate sheetofpaper as well as a siteplan of
the subject property with proposed improvements. Submit all documents and the filing fee directly to the Community
DevelopmentDepartmentat 201 S. Cortez St, Prescott, AZ 86302.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

Applicant: Michael Taylor Architects, Inc.
Address: 118 S Plesant Street

Phone: 928-445-0626, ext. 106

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

Owner: Cortez Circle, LLC

Address:

Phone: 805-235-8033

3940-7 Broad Street #407

PROJECT SITE

Address:

Current Zoning:

Assessor's Parcel Number(s) of Existing Property
109 - 15 - 015B 109 - 15 - 015C

601 South Cortez Street

MF-H

Existing Water Service (Y/N):
Existing Well (Y/N):

N

N-

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Is the project Residential or Commercial?
Please provide brief description:

#of Proposed Units: 30 apartments

Stan HitsonContact Person:

City/State/Zip:

Email:

Prescott, AZ 86303

stan@mtai.net

Contact Person:

City/State/Zip:

Email:

Wendle Schoniger

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401

Proposed Zoning: same

Existing Sewer Service (Y/N):
If Yes, Well Registry No.:

commercial

thirty (30) new apartment units

# of Proposed Lots:

N

yesHas a Water Demand Analysis been completed (commercial)?
Has a building permit application been submitted?
Has a Planningand Zoning Recommendation been made?

previously permitted B0509-089

previously permitted B0509-089

FEES: Fees are subject to change.

Single Family Residence

• $150

Existing Connection

Change of Use

Multi-Family/Apartments

2-5 units

6-10 units

• $150
• $200

11-50 units [x] $300
51-99units • $400

Residential Subdivision

6-25 lots

26-100 lots

^$300
]$500

100+ lots 2 $700

Commercial Subdivision or

Individual Commercial Project

<2 acre feet

2-4.9 acre feet

5-10 acre feet

>10 acre feet

100+ units

Date:

D$150
• $200
• $250
• $300
• $500



CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES AGENDA MEMO  
February 6, 2018 

DEPARTMENT:   City Manager (Water Resource Management) 

AGENDA ITEM:   Water Service Agreement Application No. WSA17-030 by Howard Milton 
Ausherman, Jr., and Andrea Hunting for one (1) new single family residence on APN 116-06-
047B located at 941 Green Lane 

Approved By: Date: 

Water Resource Manager:       Leslie Graser 
 

Regional Programs Director:  Craig McConnell 
 

 

 

  

Summary 
 
Water Service Agreement Application No. 17-030 was filed by Howard Milton 
Ausherman, Jr., and Andrea Hunting, owners of APN 116-06-047B, on November 30, 
2017, seeking an alternative water allocation for a single-family residence on land within 
the City limits included in the reservation for vacant, residentially zoned tracts. 
 
Background 
 
Per the Water Management and Calendar Year 2017 Alternative Water Allocation 
Policy, as amended, the applicant submitted Building Permit (B1710-046) and Water 
Service Agreement (WSA17-030) applications. According to the 2018 Policy, an 
alternative water allocation of 0.25 acre-foot is required, and can be administratively 
approved by the City Manager. 

 
Attachments 
 

1) Location Map  
2) Water Service Agreement Application No. WSA17-030 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Recommended Subcommittee Action:  None (for information only). 
 

 



R

VI
CT

OR
IA

 D
R

2061

998

990

2025

941 937 935939

2089

2099

2081

1202

2120

999

996

2111

2121

2060

980

2129

2107

972

2104

975

931

APN 116-06-047B

This map is a product of

This document is a graphic representation only of best available sources.

Legend
CVID properties:

Current Features
Address

abc Streets Annotation 6900
Streets
Lakes
Streams

Golf Course:
FAIRWAY
GREEN
TEE

Parcels
Building

0' 110'1" = 

leah.hubbard, 2018-01-05 08:27:35

The City of Prescott

The City of Prescott assumes no responsibility for any errors.

GREEN LN



Qwtl ~ft) *yO
WSA r7 . D30

amrw PHKSr<)TT

WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT APPLICATION
Water Resources

201 S. Cortez St., Prescott, AZ 86303

(P) 928.777.1645 (F) 928.777.1255

Please complete the form and submit a legible legal description on a separate sheetofpaper as well as asiteplan of
the subject property with proposed improvements. Submit all documents and the filing fee directly to the Community
Development Department at 201 S. Cortez St, Prescott, AZ86302.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

PROJECT SITE

Address:

Current Zoning:

Assessor's Parcel Number(s) of Existing Property
lib -Q(p-0^1P>

Existing Water Service (Y/N):

Existing Well (Y/N):

££* cv\e.

M
2:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Is the project Residential or Commercial?

Please provide brief description:

# of Proposed Units:

Contact Person: M/lWN AV£rt£limA(J
City/State/Zip:

Contact Person: /tf / L-WtV AU's/JEL
City/State/Zip:

Proposed Zoning:

Existing Sewer Service (Y/N): /V
If Yes, Well Registry No.:

# of Proposed Lots:

Has a Water Demand Analysis been completed (commercial)?
Has a building permit application been submitted?
Has a Planning and Zoning Recommendation been made?

£_i_*

FEES: Fees are subject to change.

Single Family Residence

m 150

Existing Connection

Change of Use

Multi-Family/Apartments

2-5 units

6-10 units

• $150
D$200

11-50 units D $300

Residential Subdivision

6-25 lots

26-100 lots

U$300
D$500

100+ lots • $700

Commercial Subdivision or

Individual Commercial Project

<2 acre feet

2-4.9 acre feet

5-10 acre feet

>10 acre feet

100+ units

• $150
• $200
• $250
• $300
H$500

Df:|| #0,17

/



CITY COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE FOR WATER ISSUES AGENDA MEMO  
February 6, 2017 

DEPARTMENT:    City Manager (Water Resource Management) 

AGENDA ITEM:   Annexation of APN 106-26-007A, located at 2720 N. Country Park Drive, 
and City water service 

Approved By: Date: 

Water Resource Manager:    Leslie Graser 
 

Regional Programs Director:   Craig McConnell 
 

 

 

  

Background 
 
In June 2017, Don Carter initiated discussions on behalf of the property owner of record 
(Barbara Taylor) with Water Resource Management regarding water service to APN 106-
26-007A (see Attachment 1, Location Map), a parcel situated outside of the City limits.  
The request is for service to one single-family dwelling unit which has not been 
constructed.  
 
In 2001, the property owner at that time (Tom Peoples) entered into City Contract No. 
2001-027 for water service to the parcel.  Section 2.D. of the contract provided that, “In 
the event that one residential dwelling unit is not constructed by the Applicant within five 
(5) years from the date of this Agreement, then and in that event, this Agreement shall 
terminate and have no further force or effect.”  As of February 2, 2006, the contract 
expired since the proposed dwelling unit had not been constructed, and the associated 
alternative water allocation was returned to the City portfolio. 
 
Water Resource Management was subsequently contacted by a real estate office in June 
2016 regarding this property. By e-mail, the inquiring party was informed that the property 
was not eligible for City water service according to the Prescott City Code, and advised 
that the Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR) could be contacted regarding 
drilling a well.  In October 2016, an Affidavit of Disclosure between the seller and the 
current owner (Taylor) documented that the property was vacant land without water 
service or a well.  In February 2017, at the request of Mr. Carter, Water Resource 
Management provided a letter to assist the property owner in meeting ADWR well drilling 
requirements in the case when a property is located within 100’ of a municipal distribution 
system, but not eligible for water service (Attachment 2).  For reference, a City water line 
is located within North Country Park Drive.  
 
Prescott City Code 2-1-8 provides that water service outside of the City limits can be 
provided under one of three conditions:  1) there is an existing, valid contractual 
agreement obligating the City to provide water;  2) an intergovernmental agreement exists 
providing for service; or 3) the property fronts a City water line, and service was 
requested before October 4, 2005.  While in this case service was requested before 
October 4, 2005, as mentioned above, the City's obligation to serve ceased with 
expiration of the contract as of February 2, 2006. 
 
 



Agenda Item:  Annexation of APN 106-26-007A, located at 2720 N. Country Park Drive, 
and City water service 

 2 

 
In 2017, the property owner filed an application with ADWR to drill a well, and ADWR 
issued drilling authority in April 2017.  Mr. Carter has stated that drilling was not 
successful; the well produced no water. The ADWR Notice of Intent (NOI) to Drill 
prescribes that, “The driller must file a log of the well within 30 days of completion of 
drilling”.  In the event a well is to be abandoned, ADWR further prescribes in the NOI that, 
“If the well cannot be successfully completed as initially intended (dry hole, cave in, lost 
tools, etc.), the well must be properly abandoned and a Well Abandonment Completion 
Report must be filed by your driller [as required by A.A.C. R12-15-816(F)].”  None of the 
preceding information has been placed in the public record yet by the well driller. At this 
time, available ADWR online records indicate that the abovementioned paperwork and 
potential abandonment need to be completed. 
 
Mr. Carter has also approached the Community Development Department with respect to 
annexation procedures.  Once annexed, the property would be subject to the City’s 
current (2018) water management policy, which includes: 
 

Policy 10 – Unless a project for new development is entitled to water by either a Pre-
Existing/Historical Agreement or a real property acquisition contract for the Zone 19 
water tank capital improvement project, alternative supplies shall only be allocated to 
projects that will return 50% or more wastewater to a City treatment plant, and all such 
qualifying projects must connect to and be served by the City sewer system prior to 
physical delivery of any alternative water provided for in a water service agreement.  

 

The Public Works Department has determined that the nearest sewer line is over 700 feet 
away.  The feasibility and cost of connection have not been fully evaluated to date. 
 
The alternative water demand of the single-family dwelling unit would be 0.25 acre-feet 
per year, according to the 2018 Water Management Policy of the City.  
 
Attachments 
 

1) Location Map 
2) City letter dated February 21, 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommended Subcommittee Action:  Presentation and discussion to determine if the 
request should be placed on a future Subcommittee agenda for further discussion.   
 

 








	AGENDA_CWIC_02 06 2018 _version 1 29 18
	MEMO Selection of Subcommittee Chairman
	MEMO Subcommittee Meeting Schedule
	MINUTES_12 05 2017 (2) - Smooth (CM 1-25-18)
	Alternative Water Portfolio Update_01 23 2018
	MEMO Cortez Circle LLC 1 5 18
	WSA 17-029 Map
	WSA17-029 Application
	MEMO Ausherman 1 5 17
	WSA17-030 Map
	WSA17-030 Application
	MEMO_ Don Carter APN 106-26-007A_01 31 2018
	Attachment 1_Location Map_01 31 2018
	Attachment 2_APN 106-26-007A_water service letter



